

(i) *Education.* The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, denial of equal access to institutions of higher education; exclusion from social and professional association with students and teachers; denial of educational honors; social patterns or pressures which have discouraged the individual from pursuing a professional or business education; and other similar factors.

(ii) *Employment.* The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, discrimination in hiring; discrimination in promotions and other aspects of professional advancement; discrimination in pay and fringe benefits; discrimination in other terms and conditions of employment; retaliatory behavior by an employer; social patterns or pressures which have channelled the individual into nonprofessional or non-business fields; and other similar factors.

(iii) *Business history.* The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, unequal access to credit or capital; acquisition of credit or capital; acquisition of credit or capital under unfavorable circumstances; discrimination in receipt (award and/or bid) of government contracts; discrimination by potential clients; exclusion from business or professional organizations; and other similar factors which have impeded the individual's business development.

## **§ 2 Economic disadvantage.**

(a) *Economically disadvantaged Individuals.* (1) Economically disadvantaged individuals are socially disadvantaged individuals or women whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system has been impaired due to diminished capital and credit opportunities as compared to others in the same or similar line of business who are not socially disadvantaged, and such diminished opportunities have precluded or are likely to preclude such individuals from successfully competing in the open market. In determining economic disadvantage the FCC may compare the applicant concern's business and financial profile with profiles of businesses in the same or similar line of business which are not owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.

(2) This program is not intended to assist concerns owned and controlled by socially disadvantaged individuals or women who have accumulated substantial wealth, who have unlimited growth potential or who have not experienced or having overcome impediments to obtaining access to financing, markets and resources.

(3) For economic disadvantage as it relates to tribally-owned concerns, see § 3(a)(2).

(b) *Factors to be considered.* In determining the degree of diminished credit and capital opportunities of a socially disadvantaged individual or woman, the FCC will consider factors relating both to the applicant concern and to the individual(s) claiming disadvantaged status, including that individual's access to credit and capital; the

financial condition of the applicant concern; and the applicant concern's access to credit, capital and markets.

(1) *Personal financial condition of the individuals claiming disadvantaged status.* This criterion is designed to assess the relative degree of economic disadvantage of the individual as well as the individual's potential to capitalize or otherwise provide financial support for the business. The specific factors to be considered include but are not limited to: the individual's personal income for at least the past two years; total fair market value of all assets; and the individual's personal net worth. An individual whose personal net worth exceeds \$250,000 will not be considered economically disadvantaged.

(i)(A) Except as provided in paragraph (b)(1)(i)(B) of this section, when married, an individual upon whom eligibility is based shall submit a financial statement relating to his/her personal finances and a separate financial statement relating to his/her spouse's personal finances. A married applicant individual residing in any of the community property states or territories of the United States must clearly identify on his or her financial statement those assets which are his or her separate property and those which are community property. The spouse of such married applicant must similarly identify on his or her financial statement those assets which are his or her separate property and those which are community property. A one-half interest in the assets identified as community property (and income derived from such assets) will be attributed to the applicant individual for purposes of determining economic disadvantage. Assets or a community property interest in assets, which applicant spouse has transferred to a non-applicant spouse within 2 years of the date of the FCC application will be presumed to be the property of the applicant spouse for purposes of determining his/her personal net worth. However, such presumption shall not apply to any applicant spouse who is subject to a legal separation recognized by a court of competent jurisdiction. A financial statement of a spouse of an applicant is not required if the individual and his/her spouse are subject to a legal separation recognized by a court of competent jurisdiction. However, an applicant individual must include on his or her statement all community property in which he or she has an interest.

(B) Except for concerns where both spouses are individuals upon whom eligibility is based, the requirement of paragraph (b)(1)(i)(A) of this section, relating to the separate financial statements, applies only to determinations of economic disadvantage. For a concern where both spouses are individuals upon whom eligibility is based, the personal net worth of each spouse individually will be considered.

(2) *Business financial condition.* This criterion will be used to provide a financial picture of a firm at a specific point in time in comparison to other concerns in the same or similar line of business which are not owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. In evaluating a concern's financial condition, the FCC's consideration will include, but not be limited to, the following factors: business assets, revenues, pre-tax profit, working capital and net worth of the concern, including the value of the investments in the concern held by the individual claiming disadvantaged status.

(3) *Access to credit and capital.* This criterion will be used to evaluate the ability of the applicant concern to obtain the external support necessary to operate a competitive business enterprise. In making the evaluation, the FCC shall consider the concern's access to credit and capital, including, but not limited to, the following factors: Access to long-term financing; equipment trade credit; access to raw materials and/or supplier trade credit; and bonding capability.

**§ 3 Concerns owned by Indian tribes, including Alaska Native Corporations.**

(a) *General.* Indian tribes are considered socially and economically disadvantaged for purposes of participation according to the following criteria:

(1) *Social disadvantage.* An Indian tribe meeting the definition set forth in § 4 shall be deemed socially disadvantaged.

(2) *Economic disadvantage.* With the exception of Alaska Native Corporations (see § 3(e)(2)), the Indian tribe must demonstrate to the FCC that the tribe itself is economically disadvantaged. This shall involve the consideration of available data showing the tribe's economic condition, including but not limited to, the following information:

- (i) The number of tribal members.
- (ii) The present tribal unemployment rate.
- (iii) The per capita income of tribal members, excluding judgment awards.
- (iv) The percentage of the local Indian population below the poverty level.
- (v) The tribe's access to capital markets.

(vi) The tribal assets as disclosed in a current tribal financial statement. The statement should list all assets including those which are encumbered or held in trust, but the status of those encumbered or trust assets should be clearly delineated.

(vii) A list of all wholly or partially owned tribal enterprises or affiliates and the primary industry classification of each. The list must also specify the members of the tribe who manage or control such enterprises or serve as officers or directors.

(3) *Application process – forms and documents required.* In order to establish tribal eligibility, the Indian tribe must submit the forms and documents required of applicants generally as well as the following material.

(i) A copy of the tribe's governing document(s) such as its constitution or business charter.

(ii) Evidence of its recognition as a tribe eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States or by its state of residence.

(iii) Copies of its articles of incorporation and bylaws as filed with the organizing or chartering authority, or similar documents needed to establish and govern a non-corporate legal entity.

(iv) Documents or materials needed to show the tribe's economically disadvantaged status as described in paragraph (a)(2) of this section.

(b) *Legal business entity organized for profit and susceptible to suit.* The applicant or participating concern must be a separate and distinct legal entity organized or chartered by the tribe, or Federal or state authorities. The concern's articles of incorporation must contain express sovereign immunity waiver language, or a "sue and be sued" clause which designates United States Federal Courts to be among the courts of competent jurisdiction for all matters relating to the FCC's programs, including, but not limited to, loans, advance payments and contract performance. Also, the concern must be *organized for profit*, and the tribe must possess economic development powers in the tribe's governing documents.

(c) *Ownership.* For corporate entities, a tribe must own at least 51 percent of the voting stock and at least 51 percent of the aggregate of all classes of stock. For non-corporate entities, a tribe must own at least a 51 percent interest.

(d) *Control and management.* (i) Except for concerns owned by ANCs, the management and daily business operations of a tribally-owned concern must be controlled by an individual member(s) of an economically disadvantaged tribe. This paragraph does not preclude management of a tribally-owned concern by committees, teams, or Boards controlled by such individuals.

(e) *Individual eligibility limitation - (1) Concerns owned by Indian tribes except those owned by Alaska Native Corporations.* Requirements regarding management and daily business operations are met if a tribally-owned concern is controlled by one or more members of the economically disadvantaged Indian tribe.

(2) *Concerns owned by Alaska Native Corporations.* The Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, as amended, provides that a concern which is majority owned by an Alaska Native Corporation shall be deemed to be controlled and managed by minority individuals and, pursuant to Pub. L. 102-415 § 10 (1992) (43 U.S.C. § 1626(e)), shall be deemed economically disadvantaged for purpose of participation in Federal programs. Therefore, the FCC will not examine the disadvantaged status of an individual involved in the management of daily business operations of an Alaska Native Corporation-owned concern.

#### **§ 4 Definitions.**

*Alaska Native* means a citizen of the United States who is a person of one-fourth degree or more Alaskan Indian (including Tsimshian Indians not enrolled in the Metlaktla Indian Community), Eskimo, or Aleut blood, or a combination thereof. The term includes, in the absence of proof of a minimum blood quantum, any citizen who is regarded as an Alaska Native.

*Alaska Native Corporation* means any Regional Corporation, Village Corporation, Urban Corporation, or Group Corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alaska in accordance with the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, as amended (43 U.S.C. 1601, et seq).

*Indian tribe* means any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community of Indians, including any Alaska Native Corporation, as defined in this section, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians, or is recognized as such by the State in which such tribe, band, nation, group, or community resides. See, definition of "tribally-owned concern."

**~~13 CFR Chapter 1 (1-1-93 Edition)~~ PROPOSED FCC REGULATIONS**

**~~§ 124.105~~ § 1 Social Disadvantage**

(a) *General.* Socially disadvantaged individuals are those who have been subjected to racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias because of their identities as members of groups without regard to their individual qualities. The social disadvantage must stem from circumstances beyond their control. For social disadvantage relating to Indian tribes and Alaska Native Corporations, see § ~~124.112(a)~~ 3(a).

(b) *Members of designated groups.* (1) In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the following individuals are presumed to be socially disadvantaged: Black African Americans; Hispanic Americans; Native Americans (American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, or Native Hawaiians); Asian Pacific Americans (persons with origins from Burma, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Brunei, Japan, China, Taiwan, Laos, Cambodia (Kampuchea), Vietnam, Korea, The Philippines, U.S. Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands (Republic of Palau), Republic of the Marshall Islands, Federated States of Micronesia, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Guam, Samoa, Macao, Hong Kong, Fiji, Tonga, Kiribati, Tuvalu, or Nauru); Subcontinent Asian Americans (persons with origins from India, Pakistan, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands or Nepal); and members of other groups designated from time to time by SBA according to procedures set forth at paragraph (d) of this section. American Indians/Alaska Natives; Asian Americans/Pacific Islanders. [See Statement of Policy on Minority Ownership of Broadcasting Facilities, 68 FCC 2d 979 (1978).]

(2) An individual seeking socially disadvantaged status as a member of a designated group may be required to demonstrate that he/she holds himself/herself out and is identified as a member of a designated group if ~~SBA~~ the FCC has reason to question such individual's status as a group member.

(c) *Individuals not members of designated groups.* (1) An individual who is not a member of one of the above-named groups must establish his/her individual social disadvantage on the basis of clear and convincing evidence. A clear and convincing case of social disadvantage must include the following elements:

(i)(1) The individual's social disadvantage must stem from his or her color, ethnic origin, gender, physical handicap, long-term residence in an environment isolated from the mainstream of American society, or other similar cause not common to small business persons who are not socially disadvantaged.

(i)(2) The individual must demonstrate that he or she has personally suffered social disadvantage, not merely claim membership in a non-designated group which could be considered socially disadvantaged.

(i)(3) The individual's social disadvantage must be rooted in treatment which he or she has experienced in American society, not in other countries.

~~(iv)~~(4) The individual's social disadvantage must be chronic and substantial, not fleeting or insignificant.

~~(v)~~(5) The individual's social disadvantage must have negatively impacted on his or her entry into and/or advancement in the business world. SBA The FCC will entertain any relevant evidence in assessing this element of an applicant's case. SBA The FCC will particularly consider and place emphasis on the following experiences of the individual, where relevant:

~~(A)~~(i) *Education.* SBA The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, denial of equal access to institutions of higher education; exclusion from social and professional association with students and teachers; denial educational honors; social patterns or pressures which have discouraged the individual from pursuing a professional or business education; and other similar factors.

~~(B)~~(ii) *Employment.* SBA The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, discrimination in hiring; discrimination in promotions and other aspects of professional advancement; discrimination in pay and fringe benefits; discrimination in other terms and conditions of employment; retaliatory behavior by an employer; social patterns or pressures which have channelled the individual into nonprofessional or non-business fields; and other similar factors.

~~(C)~~(iii) *Business history.* SBA The FCC shall consider, as evidence of an individual's social disadvantage, unequal access to credit or capital; acquisition of credit or capital; acquisition of credit or capital under unfavorable circumstances; discrimination in receipt (award and/or bid) of government contracts; discrimination by potential clients; exclusion from business or professional organizations; and other similar factors which have impeded the individual's business development.

~~(D) Socially disadvantaged group inclusion—(1) General. Upon an adequate preliminary showing to SBA by representatives of an identifiable group that the group has suffered chronic racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias, and upon the request of the representatives of the group that SBA do so, SBA shall publish in the FEDERAL REGISTER a notice of its receipt of a request that it consider a group not specifically named in paragraph (b)(1) of this section to have members which are socially disadvantaged because of their identification as members of the group for the purpose of eligibility for the 8(a) program. The notice shall adequately identify the group making the request, and if a hearing is requested on the matter and such request is granted, the time, date and location at which such hearing is to be held. All information submitted to support a request should be addressed to the AA/MSB&COD.~~

~~(2) Standards to be applied. In determining whether a group has made an adequate preliminary showing that it has suffered chronic racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias for the purposes of this regulation, SBA shall determine:~~

~~(i) Whether the group has suffered the effects of prejudice, bias, or discriminatory practices;~~

~~(ii) Whether such conditions have resulted in economic deprivation for the group of the type which Congress has found exists for the groups named in the Small Business Act; and~~

~~(iii) Whether such conditions have produced impediments in the business world for members of the group over which they have no control and which are not common to all small business owners. If it is demonstrated to SBA by a particular group that it satisfies the above criteria, SBA will publish the notice described in paragraph (d)(1) of this section.~~

~~(3) Procedure. Once a notice is published under paragraph (d)(1) of this section, SBA shall adduce further information on the record of the proceeding which tends to support or refute the group's request. Such information may be submitted by any member of the public, including Government representatives and any member of the private sector. Information may be submitted in written form, or orally at such hearings as SBA may hold on the matter.~~

~~(4) Decision. Once SBA has published a notice under paragraph (d)(1) of this section, it shall afford a period of not more than thirty (3) days for public comment concerning the petition for socially disadvantaged group status. If appropriate, SBA may hold hearings within such comment period. Thereafter, SBA shall consider all information received and shall render its final decision within 60 days of the close of the comment period. Such decisions shall be published as a notice in the FEDERAL REGISTER. Concurrent with the notice, SBA shall advise the petitioners of its final decision in writing. If appropriate, SBA shall amend this regulation accordingly.~~

## **§ 124.106 2 Economic disadvantage.**

(a) ~~Economic disadvantage for the 8(a) program. (1)(i) For purposes of the 8(a) program, economically~~ Economically disadvantaged Individuals. (1) Economically disadvantaged individuals are socially disadvantaged individuals or women whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system has been impaired due to diminished capital and credit opportunities as compared to others in the same or similar line of business who are not socially disadvantaged, and such diminished opportunities have precluded or are likely to preclude such individuals from successfully competing in the open market. In determining economic disadvantage ~~for purposes of 8(a) program eligibility, SBA shall~~ the FCC may compare the applicant concern's business and financial profile with profiles of businesses in the same or similar line of business which are not owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.

~~(ii)(2)~~ This program is not intended to assist concerns owned and controlled by socially disadvantaged individuals or women who have accumulated substantial wealth, who have unlimited growth potential or who have not experienced or having overcome impediments to obtaining access to financing, markets and resources.

~~(#)(3)~~ For economic disadvantage as it relates to tribally-owned concerns, see § ~~124.112(b)(2)~~ 3(a)(2).

~~(2)(b)~~ *Factors to be considered.* In determining the degree of diminished credit and capital opportunities of a socially disadvantaged individual or woman, ~~SBA~~ the FCC will consider factors relating both to the applicant concern and to the individual(s) claiming disadvantaged status, including that individual's access to credit and capital; the financial condition of the applicant concern; and the applicant concern's access to credit, capital and markets.

~~(#)(1)~~ *Personal financial condition of the individuals claiming disadvantaged status.* This criterion is designed to assess the relative degree of economic disadvantage of the individual as well as the individual's potential to capitalize or otherwise provide financial support for the business. The specific factors to be considered include but are not limited to: the individual's personal income for at least the past two years; total fair market value of all assets; and the individual's personal net worth. ~~Subject to the exclusion set forth in paragraph (a)(2)(i)(B) of this section, an~~ An individual whose personal net worth exceeds \$250,000 will not be considered economically disadvantaged ~~for purposes of 8(a) program entry. For personal net worth thresholds relating to continued 8(a) program eligibility, see § 124.111(a).~~

~~(A)(1)(i)(A)~~ Except as provided in paragraph ~~(a)(2)(A)(2)~~ (b)(1)(i)(B) of this section, when married, an individual upon whom eligibility is based shall submit a financial statement relating to his/her personal finances and a separate financial statement relating to his/her spouse's personal finances. A married applicant individual residing in any of the community property states or territories of the United States ~~(e.g. Arizona, California, Idaho, Louisiana, Nevada, New Mexico, Puerto Rico, Texas, Washington and Wisconsin)~~ must clearly identify on his or her financial statement those assets which are his or her separate property and those which are community property. The spouse of such married applicant must similarly identify on his or her financial statement those assets which are his or her separate property and those which are community property. A one-half interest in the assets identified as community property (and income derived from such assets) will be attributed to the applicant individual for purposes of determining economic disadvantage. Assets or a community property interest in assets, which applicant spouse has transferred to a non-applicant spouse within 2 years of the date of the FCC application ~~to the 8(a) program~~ will be presumed to be the property of the applicant spouse for purposes of determining his/her personal net worth. However, such presumption shall not apply to any applicant spouse who is subject to a legal separation recognized by a court of competent jurisdiction. A financial statement of a spouse of an applicant is not required if the individual and his/her spouse are subject to a legal separation recognized by a court of competent jurisdiction. However, an applicant individual must include on his or her statement all community property in which he or she has an interest.

~~(2)(B)~~ Except for concerns where both spouses are individuals upon whom eligibility is based, the requirement of paragraph ~~(a)(2)(i)(A)(1)~~ (b)(1)(i)(A) of this section, relating to the separate financial statements, applies only to determinations of economic

disadvantage for purposes of 8(a) program entry. For a concern where both spouses are individuals upon whom program eligibility is based, the personal net worth of each spouse individually will be considered for program certification and for program eligibility.

~~(B) Whenever SBA calculates the personal net worth of an individual claiming disadvantaged status for purposes of the 8(a) program, SBA shall exclude the individual's ownership interest in the applicant or participating 8(a) concern and the equity in his/her primary personal residence, but shall not exclude any portion of such equity in his/her primary residence which is attributable to excessive withdrawals from the applicant or participating 8(a) concern.~~

~~(C) Whenever SBA calculates the personal net worth of an individual claiming to be an Alaska Native, as defined in § 124.100, for purposes of qualifying an individually owned 8(a) applicant concern, SBA shall include assets and income from sources other than an Alaska Native Corporation, as defined in § 124.100, and shall exclude from such calculation any of the following which the individual receives from any Alaska Native Corporation:~~

~~(1) Cash (including cash dividends on stock received from a Native Corporation) to the extent that it does not, in the aggregate, exceed \$2,000 per individual per annum;~~

~~(2) Stock (including stock issued or distributed by a Native Corporation as a dividend or distribution on stock);~~

~~(3) A partnership interest;~~

~~(4) Land or an interest in land (including land or an interest in land received from a Native Corporation as a dividend or distribution on stock); and~~

~~(5) An interest in settlement trust.~~

~~(ii)(2) *Business financial condition.* This criterion will be used to provide a financial picture of a firm at a specific point in time in comparison to other concerns in the same or similar line of business which are not owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. In evaluating a concern's financial condition, SBA's the FCC's consideration will include, but not be limited to, the following factors: business assets, revenues, pre-tax profit, working capital and net worth of the concern, including the value of the investments in the concern held by the individual claiming disadvantaged status.~~

~~(iii)(3) *Access to credit and capital.* This criterion will be used to evaluate the ability of the applicant concern to obtain the external support necessary to operate a competitive business enterprise. In making the evaluation, SBA the FCC shall consider the concern's access to credit and capital, including, but not limited to, the following factors: Access to long-term financing; equipment trade credit; access to raw materials and/or supplier trade credit; and bonding capability.~~

~~(b) Economic disadvantage for the 8(d) Subcontracting Program, Small Disadvantaged Business Set Asides, Small Disadvantaged Business Evaluation Preferences and for any other Federal procurement programs requiring SBA's determination of disadvantaged status. (1) For purposes of the section 8(d) Subcontracting Program and other programs requiring SBA's determination of disadvantaged status, economically disadvantaged individuals are socially disadvantaged individuals whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system has been impaired due to diminished capital and credit opportunities, as compared to others in the same or similar line of business and whose diminished opportunities have precluded or are likely to preclude such individuals from successfully competing in the open market. In determining economic disadvantage for the section 8(d) Subcontracting program, Small Disadvantaged Business set asides and Small Disadvantaged Business Evaluation preferences, SBA will consider the factors set forth in paragraph (a) of this section but will apply standards to each factor that are less restrictive than those applied when determining economic disadvantage for purposes of the 8(a) program. This approach corresponds to the Congressional intent that partial or complete achievement of a concern's 8(a) program business development goals should not necessarily preclude its participation in other Federal procurement programs for concerns owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.~~

~~(2) An individual whose personal net worth exceeds \$750,000 as calculated pursuant to paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section, will not be considered economically disadvantaged for purposes of section 8(d) of the Small Business Act (15 U.S.C. 637(d)) or any Federal procurement program which uses section 8(d) for its definition of economic disadvantage.~~

**~~§ 124.112~~ 3 Concerns owned by Indian tribes, including Alaska Native Corporations.**

~~(a) General. Small business concerns owned by Indian tribes are eligible for participation in the section 8(a) program, provided that certain conditions are met as described below. The term "Indian tribe" is defined in § 124.100.~~

~~(2) Small business concerns owned and controlled by Indian tribes are generally considered socially and economically disadvantaged for purposes of participation according to the following criteria: in programs authorized by section 8(d) of the Small Business Act, section 1207(a) of the Defense Authorization Act of 1987 and any other program, which requires social and economic disadvantaged status as a condition of eligibility. If the disadvantaged status of a tribally owned concern is challenged under subpart B of this part, SBA will evaluate the concern's disadvantaged status using the criteria set forth in this section.~~

~~(3) Small business concerns owned and controlled by Alaska Native Corporations (ANCs) are eligible for participation in the 8(a) program, subject to the same conditions as apply to tribally owned concerns which are described at paragraphs (b) through (e)~~

~~of this section, with the following exceptions which apply solely to ANC-owned concerns:~~

~~(i) In evaluating the economic disadvantage of the ANC, no consideration shall be given to assets or income derived from distributions of the Alaska Native Fund established by the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, 43 U.S.C. 1601, et seq. Such assets and income should be included and specifically identified on the ANC's financial statements.~~

~~(ii) Alaska Natives and descendants of Natives must own a majority of both the total equity of the ANC and the total voting powers to elect directors of the ANC through their holdings of settlement common stock. Settlement common stock means stock of ANC issued pursuant to 43 U.S.C. 1606(g)(1), which is subject to the rights and restrictions listed in 43 U.S.C. 1606(h)(1).~~

~~(iii) Even though an ANC can be either for profit or non profit, a small business concern owned and controlled by ANC must be for profit to be eligible for the 8(a) program. The concern will be deemed owned and controlled by the ANC for purposes of program eligibility so as to satisfy paragraph (e)(3) of this section where the majority of stock or other ownership interest is held by the ANC and holders of its settlement common stock. Both a majority of the total equity and total voting power must be so held.~~

~~(iv) Paragraphs (b)(3) and (ii) of this section are not generally applicable to an ANC, provided its status as an ANC is clearly shown in its articles of incorporation and by-laws. Additionally, paragraph (e)(1) of this section is not applicable to the ANC-owned concern to the extent it requires an express waiver of sovereign immunity or a "sue and be sued" clause.~~

~~(v) The Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act provides that a concern minority-owned by an ANC shall be deemed to be both owned and controlled by such ANC. Therefore, an individual responsible for control and management of an ANC-owned 8(a) applicant or Participant need not establish personal social and economic disadvantage.~~

~~(b) Tribal eligibility. In order to qualify a concern which it owns and controls for participation in the 8(a) program, an Indian tribe itself must meet the conditions set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(2) of this section. Once an Indian tribe has so established its disadvantaged status, it need not reestablish such status in order to have other businesses that it owns certified for 8(a) Program Participation, unless specifically required to do so by the AA/MSB&COD or his/her designee. The AA/MSB&COD, or designee, may require proof of tribal eligibility during the Program Participation of any tribally owned business or at any time during the processing of an 8(a) program application from a tribally owned concern. However, nothing in this paragraph affects the requirement that each tribally owned concern seeking to be certified for 8(a) Program Participation comply with the provisions of paragraph (e) of this section.~~

~~(1) *Social disadvantage.* An Indian tribe meeting the definition set forth in § 124.100 4 shall be deemed socially disadvantaged.~~

(2) *Economic disadvantage.* ~~In order to be eligible to participate in the 8(a) Program~~ With the exception of Alaska Native Corporations (see § 3(e)(2)), the Indian tribe must demonstrate to ~~SBA~~ the FCC that the tribe itself is economically disadvantaged. This shall involve the consideration of available data showing the tribe's economic condition, including but not limited to, the following information:

- (i) The number of tribal members.
- (ii) The present tribal unemployment rate.
- (iii) The per capita income of tribal members, excluding judgment awards.
- (iv) The percentage of the local Indian population below the poverty level.
- (v) The tribe's access to capital markets.

(vi) The tribal assets as disclosed in a current tribal financial statement. The statement should list all assets including those which are encumbered or held in trust, but the status of those encumbered or trust assets should be clearly delineated.

(vii) A list of all wholly or partially owned tribal enterprises or affiliates and the primary industry classification of each. The list must also specify the members of the tribe who manage or control such enterprises or serve as officers or directors.

(3) *Application process -- forms and documents required.* ~~Except as provided in paragraph (a)(3)(iv) of this section, in~~ In order to establish tribal eligibility to qualify for the 8(a) program, the Indian tribe must submit the forms and documents required of ~~8(a)~~ applicants generally as well as the following material.

- (i) A copy of the tribe's governing document(s) such as its constitution or business charter.
- (ii) Evidence of its recognition as a tribe eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States or by its state of residence.
- (iii) Copies of its articles of incorporation and bylaws as filed with the organizing or chartering authority, or similar documents needed to establish and govern a non-corporate legal entity.
- (iv) Documents or materials needed to show the tribe's economically disadvantaged status as described in paragraph ~~(b)(2)~~ (a)(2) of this section.

~~(c) Business eligibility. In order to be eligible to participate in the 8(a) program, a concern which is owned by an eligible Indian tribe must meet the conditions set forth in paragraphs (c)(1) through (c)(6) of this section.~~

~~(1)(b)~~ Legal business entity organized for profit and susceptible to suit. The applicant or participating concern must be a separate and distinct legal entity organized

or chartered by the tribe, or Federal or state authorities. ~~Except as provided in paragraph (a)(3)(iv) of this section, the~~ The concern's articles of incorporation must contain express sovereign immunity waiver language, or a "sue and be sued" clause which designates United States Federal Courts to be among the courts of competent jurisdiction for all matters relating to SBA's the FCC's programs, including, but not limited to, ~~8(a) Program Participation~~ loans, advance payments and contract performance. Also, the concern must be organized for profit, and the tribe must possess economic development powers in the tribe's governing documents.

~~(2) Size. (i) A tribally owned applicant concern must qualify as a small business concern as defined for purposes of Government procurement in part 121 of this title. The particular size standard to be applied shall be based on the primary industry classification of the applicant concern. Ownership by the tribe will not, in and of itself, cause affiliation with the tribe or with other entities owned by the tribe. However, affiliation with other tribally owned entities may be caused by circumstances other than common tribal ownership. (See part 121 of this title regarding affiliation.)~~

~~(ii) Except as provided in paragraph (e)(2)(iii) of this section, a tribally owned Program Participant must certify to SBA that it is a small business pursuant to the provisions of part 121 of this title for the purpose of performing each individual contract which it is awarded.~~

~~(iii) During its Program Term, a tribally owned Program Participant may, for up to two 8(a) contracts, be a party to a joint venture which exceeds the applicable size standard, if the joint venture is:~~

~~(A) 51 percent or more owned and controlled by the tribally owned Participant;~~

~~(B) Is located on the tribe's reservation or land owned by such tribe;~~

~~(C) Performs most of its activities on such reservation or tribally owned land; and~~

~~(D) Employs members of the tribe for at least 50 percent of its total workforce.~~

~~(3)(c) Ownership.~~ For corporate entities, a tribe must own at least 51 percent of the voting stock and at least 51 percent of the aggregate of all classes of stock. For non-corporate entities, a tribe must own at least a 51 percent interest.

~~No Indian tribe shall own more than one current or former 8(a) Program Participant having the same primary industry classification. Tribally owned Program Participants are subject to the provisions of paragraphs (g) and (h) of § 124.103 relating to ownership by nondisadvantaged individuals and non 8(a) concerns.~~

~~(4)(d) Control and management. (4) Except for concerns owned by ANCs, the management and daily business operations of a tribally-owned concern must be controlled by an individual member(s) of an economically disadvantaged tribe, who does not manage and control more than one other tribally owned 8(a) Program~~

~~Participant. In addition, such manager(s) must be found to possess the requisite management or technical capabilities as determined by SBA. This paragraph does not preclude management of a tribally-owned concern by committees, teams, or Boards controlled by such individuals.~~

~~(ii) Members of the tribal council shall not participate in the daily management or on the board of directors of any tribally-owned 8(a) concern without obtaining prior written approval for such participation from SBA.~~

~~(iii) Except as permitted by paragraph (c)(4)(i) of this section, members of the management team, business committee members, officers, and directors are precluded from engaging in any outside employment or other business interests which conflict with the management of the concern or prevent the concern from achieving the objectives set forth in its business development plan. This is not intended to preclude participation in tribal or other activities which do not interfere with such individual's responsibilities in the operation of the applicant concern.~~

~~(5) Location and economic benefit. The primary economic benefits from the concern must accrue to the tribe. A concern located on a designated Indian reservation or on tribally owned land will be presumed to provide an economic benefit, such as employment, to the tribal community. SBA may approve a location not on tribally-owned land, if the applicant concern can demonstrate that similar economic benefits will accrue to the tribal community.~~

~~(6) Potential for success. (i) SBA will approve a tribally-owned concern, including a concern owned by an Alaska Native Corporation (ANC), for 8(a) Program participation only when it finds that:~~

~~(a) Either the applicant concern has been in business in its primary industry classification for two full years or a waiver is granted pursuant to paragraph (c)(6)(ii); and~~

~~(B) The concern meets the requirements of paragraph (c)(6)(iii) regarding potential success.~~

~~(ii) The AA/MSB&COD will waive the two year in business requirement for a tribally-owned concern if he/she finds that the concern has a marketing and develop strategy for meeting the 8(a) program competitive business mix requirements of § 124.312 without undue dependence on one or more contracts anticipated to be awarded under 8(a) program authority.~~

~~(iii) In determining whether a tribally owned concern has the potential for success, SBA will look at a number of factors including, but not limited to:~~

~~(A) The technical and managerial experience and competency of the individual(s) who will manage and control the daily operations of the tribally owned concern;~~

~~(B) The financial capacity of the tribally owned concern; and~~

~~(C) The concern's record of performance on any previous Federal or private sector contract in the primary industry in which the concern is seeking 8(a) certification.~~

~~(7) Other eligibility criteria. (i) A tribally-owned applicant concern shall not be denied admission into the 8(a) program due solely to a determination that specific contract opportunities are unavailable to assist the development of the concern unless:~~

~~(A) The Government has not previously procured and is unlikely to procure the types of products or services offered by the concern; or~~

~~(B) The purchase of such products or services by the Federal Government will not be in quantities sufficient to support the developmental needs of the applicant and other Program Participants providing the same or similar items or services.~~

~~(ii) Applicant must meet the eligibility criteria set forth in §§ 124.108 and 124.109.~~

~~(d)(e) Individual eligibility limitation -(1) Concerns owned by Indian tribes except those owned by Alaska Native Corporations. The Small Business Act, as amended, provides that the 8(a) requirements regarding management and daily business operations are met if a tribally-owned concern is controlled by one or more members of the economically disadvantaged Indian tribe. The statute does not require that such individual be found by SBA to be personally socially and economically disadvantaged. Therefore, SBA does not deem an individual involved in the management or daily business operations of the tribally-owned concern to have used his or her individual eligibility within the meaning of § 124.108(e).~~

~~(2) Concerns owned by Alaska Native Corporations. The Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, as amended, provides that a concern which is majority owned by an Alaska Native Corporation shall be deemed to be controlled and managed by minority individuals and, pursuant to Pub. L. No. 102-415 § 10 (1992) (43 U.S.C. § 1626(e)), shall be deemed economically disadvantaged for purpose of participation in Federal programs. Therefore, SBA the FCC will not examine the disadvantaged status of an individual involved in the management of daily business operations of an Alaska Native Corporation-owned concern, and such individual will not be deemed to have used his or her individual eligibility within the meaning of § 124.108(e).~~

~~(e) Existing Section 8(a) Firms. Tribally-owned concerns presently in the section 8(a) program must comply with the requirements of this section within 12 months from the effective date of these regulations. Failure to do so may result in the commencement of section 8(a) program termination proceedings.~~

**§ ~~124.100~~ 4 Definitions.**

*Alaska Native* means a citizen of the United States who is a person of one-fourth degree or more Alaskan Indian (including Tsimshian Indians not enrolled in the Metlaktla Indian Community), Eskimo, or Aleut blood, or a combination thereof. The term includes, in the absence of proof of a minimum blood quantum, any citizen who is regarded as an Alaska Native.

*Alaska Native Corporation* means any Regional Corporation, Village Corporation, Urban Corporation, or Group Corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alaska in accordance with the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, as amended (43 U.S.C. 1601, et seq).

*Indian tribe* means any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community of Indians, including any Alaska Native Corporation, as defined in this section, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians, or is recognized as such by the State in which such tribe, band, nation, group, or community resides. See, definition of "tribally-owned concern."